
 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  

REGULAR SESSION 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 

Monday, September 16, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 09/03/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 
be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You 
are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your 
name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to North Plains Junior National Baseball Team—
State Champions. 

B. Nina Carlson: Hillsboro Budget Committee to address council regarding 
upcoming school bond measure. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of the ownership of the Garlic Festival 
B. Discussion of the ownership of the skate park material and equipment 
C. Discussion of draft policies 
D. Presentation of August Check Register 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of the costs and expenses of the Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade  
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 1 of 212



 FIRST READING:   
None Scheduled. 

 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled.  

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 

Chief, and Library Director 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

 
B. October 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Last two Farmer’s Market scheduled for Saturday, September 21 and September 

28 from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 Benefit Dance: Country Music Swing and Sway, Saturday, September 21, 2013 

from 7:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 Chili Cook-Off, Thursday, October 17 at 6:30 in the Jessie Mays Community Hall 
 Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown, Saturday, October 19, 2013 from 7:00 p.m. to 

11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade, Saturday, October 26, 2013 from 7:00 a.m. 

with the pumpkin pancake breakfast at the Senior Center then events throughout 
the day at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 Halloween Treats at the library on Thursday, October 31, 2013 starting at 11:00 
a.m. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 
City Council Meetings are normally scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center. 
They will be held at 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following 

dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, October 7, 2013 Monday, October 21, 2013 Monday, November 4, 2013 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 2 of 212



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  

Tuesday, September 3, 2013 7:00 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton and Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
Absent Excused: Michael Demagalski 
 
Absent: Glen Warren, Michael Broome 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Public Works Director Blake Boyles, Library 
Director Debra Brodie, Management Analyst Jennifer Knowles, Deputy City Recorder 
Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 08/19/2013 Council meeting 

Motion by Lenahan. Seconded by Newton to approve the Consent Agenda with a requested 
change by the Mayor to switch Agenda Item 8C with Agenda Item 8A.  The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Judy Dreis, 31001 NW Highland Court, addressed the Council regarding a noise ordinance 
that addresses barking dogs.  She stated there is a house between the Chevron station and 
the Highland Court apartments with three dogs that have become an issue.  The dogs bark at 
people both in the Chevron parking lot and people in the parking lot at Highland Court.  Dreis 
was wondering if there is a letter that can be drafted to the owners. DeBry stated we have a 
nuisance ordinance.  Hatcher asked DeBry if there have been any other reports of this issue. 
DeBry stated this was the first we have heard of it. Hatcher thanked Dreis and staff will look 
into the issue. 
 
6. PRESENTATION: 
 None Scheduled 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 3 of 212



 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 1800 Waiver of fees for temporary Street Closure 
on September 7, 2013 for a fundraiser for Doernbecher Children’s Hospital 

 
Lyn Davis, owner of the Last Waterin’ Hole described to the Council her plans to have a 
fundraiser for the Doernbecher Children’s Hospital.  Specifically Doernbecher has expressed a 
need for more bubbles. Davis was asking the Council to waive the fees associated with the 
street closure and the city’s fee for a temporary liquor license. 
 
Lenahan and Newton asked Davis how she is planning on monitoring the use of alcohol only 
within the perimeters of the street closure.  She will have physical barriers set up at the ends of 
the street. She also stated that the North Plains people are good people and will stay within the 
bounds of the area. 
 
Kindel and Lenahan stated that the Council would like more of an advance notice of these 
requests. Davis agreed. She stated that time just got away from her. She would like to have 
these requests in to Council at least a month prior to the event. 
 
Motion by Kindel. Seconded by Lenahan to adopt the Resolution No. 1800 waiver of fees 
associated with this event on September 7, 2013. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Discussion regarding Street Fee In Lieu 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. The initial purpose of this fee was to charge the Fee in Lieu 
as a condition of approval to avoid creating patches of repaired new street among older 
unrepaired sections.  This was more of an aesthetic concern, than a safety or preservation 
measure. These funds were collected as in-fill projects or remodels were done for the eventual 
installation of curbs, gutters and sidewalks of an entire area. In most instances the resident 
could install sidewalks, storm drains and curbs on their own rather than paying the Fee in Lieu. 
Since its inception in 1998 the fee has accumulated approximately $162,300 in funding.  Funds 
have been collected for almost 15 years, and no tangible projects have been completed with 
the exception of using $21,000 on the Claxtar Street project. 
 
Builders are required to pay a county-wide Transportation Development Tax when the use of a 
property is changed.  Our Fee in Lieu is an additional fee builders need to consider before 
starting a project. Other cities in the vicinity do not have this fee. Functionally the fee has made 
construction of infill housing or major remodels prohibitive.  In the months since the fee was 
reduced/waived the City has seen a significant increase in applications for new in-fill homes.  
The reduction of this fee more than any other SDC reduction has prompted strong interest in 
building projects in North Plains.  The fee reduction has also enabled improvements by some 
businesses.  
 
The City has not realized a full benefit from the fee to date, nor does it have a clear plan to 
create such a benefit. DeBry is looking for direction from the Council on how to proceed. 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 4 of 212



Lenahan stated she wants to bring the attorney in on this discussion.  She wants it clearly 
stated that whatever action we take is legal. She wants it clearly stated if we can we use these 
funds for another area or project than what the fee was initially collected for. 
 
Hatcher stated the amount of money collected will not build a lot of sidewalk. Boyles stated 
that it costs about $10,000 to install 100 feet of frontage. DeBry stated that the prioritization of 
sidewalk projects will be a discussion for a later meeting. DeBry suggested one possibility 
could be to hire a sidewalk crew to work for a year on sidewalk projects. Kindel inquired if we 
would have public meetings before we were able to move forward with a change in the use of 
funds. 
 
The temporary moratorium of this fee will expire in October.  Council directed DeBry to 
research options and report back at the next meeting. No motion was made. 
 

C. Discussion on direction to take regarding the City newsletter and advertising 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. Recently, the City’s only newspaper the Beacon was 
discontinued indefinitely.  As a result the City’s newsletter may be the only monthly publication 
that reaches the entire community.  This also means that local organizations and businesses 
do not have a means to target advertising towards North Plains’ residents. Staff is asking 
Council to consider if the newsletter should be adapted to help fill some of the void left by the 
Beacon. 
 
Discussion ensued. If we proceed with expanding the newsletter, Council wants to have 
advertising options only available for local businesses. Council sees the value in the recorded 
history segment the Beacon provided and would like to see that continued in the city 
newsletter.  Lenahan stated the residents value the newsletter.  It was suggested approach the 
Chamber of Commerce to inquire of the feasibility of businesses using this venue for 
advertising.  Council advised staff to move forward in exploring options and costs.  
 

D. Presentation to Council of the new Events Website 
 
DeBry and Jennifer Knowles presented a new events website they are developing to the 
Council. The current website is great for managing the posting of city documents, but there are 
some limitations with our current website regarding using graphics and integration of forms. 
The new website, npfun.org has options to add more graphics for city events and connect with 
other organizations and groups that support these city events. The websites will be interactive. 
The “Events” tab in northplains.org will link to the npfun.org website and the option to click on a 
button will return to the city website.  The ability to add video clips and links straight to 
registrations will be added to the npfun.org website.  Staff is asking for Council’s approval to 
make the site live and activate it for use in promoting city events. 
 
Council was very pleased with the website and the consensus was to move forward with the 
events website. 
  

E. Presentation of a new city event: North Plains Pumpkin Run and Costume 
Parade 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 5 of 212



The City’s new Business Analyst, Jennifer Knowles, presented a proposal for a new city event 
to the Council. Knowles has put together a rough calendar of this proposed event to be called 
the North Plains Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade. This event would include a pumpkin 
pancake breakfast provided by the Senior Center; a Pumpkin Fun Run along Pumpkin Ridge 
Road; a costume parade that would be staged to begin at the pumpkin patch at Lakeview 
Farms and end at Jessie Mays Community Hall.  At Jessie Mays there will be events including 
a pumpkin carving contest; cookie decorating; coloring contest; a cider smash demonstration; 
and ending with a mini-pumpkin slingshot contest in the park.  Staff is looking for Council’s 
approval to move forward with the planning of this new event. 
 
Lenahan asked how staff is planning on funding the event.  DeBry stated that many of items 
are being donated by local vendors.  They will continue to seek contributions from different 
venues such as Intel, the Boy Scouts, churches in town, and with parents assisting.  The 
Friends of the Library will be asked to bring “harvest” treats that can be sold to participants as 
a fundraiser for the library. Recology will donate the small pumpkins for the launching contest.  
Carving kits can be picked up at the Dollar Store or Goodwill. Knowles will line up volunteers to 
help with the event. 
 
Lenahan wants to be kept informed of the employee costs associated with planning this event. 
She is especially concerned because this event was not addressed in the budget. 
 
Hatcher is hearing that the staff thinks the costs will be kept low, but he wants to know more 
details. He wants to know how much staff time is being spent on the planning and organizing 
for this new event. 
 
Council consensus was for staff to proceed with the planning for this event. They want staff to 
report back to Council at the September 16, 2013 meeting. 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B. None Scheduled 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT (Cont.):  
 
Karen Jacky informed the Council that Irene Kay will be 99 years old on September 7th and will 
be celebrating with her family.  The Senior Center is celebrating on Friday, September 6, 2013, 
with lunch followed by ice cream and cake.  Jacky invited Council to join the Seniors in 
celebrating Irene’s 99th birthday at the Senior Center. 
 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
City Manager DeBry reported on the progress of the walking trail tunnel near the 76 Gas 
Station and 307th.  The Board of Directors for the 76 Station is not allowing surveyors on the 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 6 of 212



property.  There have been some discussion on realigning the trail. Lenahan stated that 
originally they were supportive of the project. DeBry stated they were verbally on board, but 
when it came time to draw up papers, the Board of Directors were no longer willing to give up 
the land for the trail. Staff received a two sentenced letter that did not explain the reason for 
the change. Council agreed that perhaps they should be approached in person again to see if 
the situation can be rectified. 
 
DeBry explained that staff is looking into a second site for a water tank on the east side of 
town.  There is property available out West Union next to Protocol. It is a .9 acre site.  Public 
Works could use this site for many uses.  A realtor will be contacted to look into this possible 
transaction.  Council briefly discussed the process they wanted to take in selecting a realtor. 
DeBry will report to Council before moving forward. 
 
DeBry will be addressing the Comprehensive Plan with the Planning Commission at the 
9/11/13 meeting. Staff has a rough draft to identify what needs to be updated in the Comp Plan 
which is Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Chief Snyder was absent from the meeting. 
 
Public Works Director Boyles updated the Council on the Claxtar Street project. All the paving 
should be done in the next couple of weeks. 
 
Library Director Debbie Brodie reported that September is library card sign-up month.  We 
have the lucky barcode contest in effect again.  Every week there will be a new list of numbers 
posted and if your library card barcode matches you can win your choice of a candy bar or a 
bag of apples donated from Mason Hill Orchards. 
 
The Summer Reading Program has ended.  We had 96 adults participating this year.  The 
number of children signing up was down this year. 
 
The library will have a table set up at the Elementary School’s Back-to-School night on 
September 19, 2013. 
 
Library staff has applied for a grant that could be used in acquiring certification to be an 
advisor and presenter for the Cover Oregon Healthcare program. This program goes into effect 
the beginning of October 2013.  
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
The September 2013 Council Calendar was distributed in the packets for Council to review. 
 
Mayor’s Report: 
Hatcher inquired of the status of Brenda Bottema and the Lucky 2 Serve program.  DeBry 
stated she has brought the 20 applications into City Hall and one has been distributed so far. 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 7 of 212



Hatcher stated the Concerts in the Park have concluded for this year.  The last concert by the 
Garcia Birthday Band was a big success.  Hatcher stated they were a great group of guys in 
how they worked with us on the price to book them. 
 
Council Reports: 
Lenahan thanked Brodie for pursuing the educational aspect of the Cover Oregon Healthcare 
plan.  Lenahan stated there are a ton of questions that individuals have about this new 
healthcare system and thinks it will be great to be able to use the library as a resource. 
 
Lenahan asked about the status of the Curtis Street closure that was addressed at the last 
Council meeting by L. Israel. DeBry stated the street was not designed to be a closed street.  
We will need more time and data from the usage of the street in order to evaluate and 
justifying a closure. Lenahan asked that DeBry inform L. Israel that a street closure is not 
feasible at this time. 
 
Signs have been installed on Highway 26 regarding the City Center. Boyles has ordered two 
more signs to direct traffic to the Central Business District of our downtown area. 
 
Lenahan inquired of the possible installation of cameras in the downtown area that were 
mentioned at the last Council meeting.  DeBry stated Snyder will present a proposal to Council 
before anything further is decided.  Lenahan stated that she has received an “earful” from 
individuals she has spoken with about it. 
 
DeBry state the Eagle Scout project is under way on the corner of Wascoe and Main Street.  
They have laid the brick path and planted a few shrubs.  The need to add a few more structural 
barriers and add benches yet. Hatcher stated they had a great crew working on it over Labor 
Day weekend. 
 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Last two Farmer’s Market scheduled for Saturday, September 21 and September 
28 from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 Benefit Dance and Country Music Show, Saturday, September 21, 2013 from 
7:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 8:46 p.m. 
 

 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy Recorder 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 8 of 212



Agenda Item No: 6B 
 

 

Hillsboro schools bond measure campaign is off 

and running 

brownmsJPG.JPG 

Brown Middle School is among the schools in the Hillsboro district in need of a seismic upgrade, roof 

repairs and other fixes. (MICHAL THOMPSON/The Argus) 

Wendy Owen, The Oregonian By Wendy Owen, The Oregonian  

Email the author | Follow on Twitter  

on August 15, 2013 at 1:39 PM, updated August 15, 2013 at 2:23 PM  

The campaign to pass a November bond measure for Hillsboro schools is underway.  

Citizens for Hillsboro Schools started spreading the word this summer, creating a Facebook page, 

called Yes for Hillsboro Schools, and talking with various organizations. Door-to-door canvassing and 

phone calls will begin in September, said Kim Strelchun, chairwoman of the group. Strelchun is also 

chairwoman of the Hillsboro School Board. 

The Hillsboro School Board decided in June to place a $25-million bond measure on the November 

ballot to pay for technology, safety improvements, and building maintenance projects over five years.  

The cost to taxpayers is about 42-cents per $1,000 of assessed property value. The owner of a home 

assessed at $200,000, would pay about $84 a year.  

Bond funds cannot be used to pay for salaries, benefits or other district operations. They are limited to 

buildings, computers and other items that have a useful life of more than one year.  

If passed, about $17 million would pay for technology, including student and staff computers, devices 

for students and classroom projectors. About $4 million would pay for safety improvements at schools, 

such as security cameras, office line-of-sight, interior locking doors, card key access, and about $4 

million would be used for building maintenance projects, including seismic upgrades and roof 

replacements, according to district information.   

The district has a page on its website that spells out the costs of the bond over five years, a question-

and-answer section and other information. 

Strelchun said the campaign, which is donor funded, will cost about $50,000 to run, which pays for a 

part-time staff member, a voter survey, mailers, phone lines and other expenses necessary to get out the 

word. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 9 of 212



Strelchun said the spring voter survey, which spelled out the specifics of the bond, had a 59-percent 

approval rate.  

A survey conducted about a year ago for a local option levy, which would fund operations, including 

salaries, showed 51-percent approval rate. The board chose not to pursue the levy. 

Among the campaign volunteers, so far, are former school board members, former district staff, parents 

and business owners. School district staff can work on the campaign during their off hours.   

The campaign has been endorsed by The Greater Hillsboro Area Chamber of Commerce, Nike, Intel, 

Vernier Software & Technology and the Hillsboro Education Association.   

Nike was the top donor to the Beaverton School District local option levy, which voters passed in 

May.  

 -- Wendy Owen  

 

  

                      

 

© 2013 OregonLive.com. All rights reserved. 

 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 10 of 212



Citizens for Hillsboro Schools 
PO Box 2702 Hillsboro OR 97123 
www.yesforhillsboroschools.org 

August 6, 2013 

 

 

We are Citizens for Hillsboro Schools, a group of local volunteers who are supporting the  

Hillsboro School District’s $25 million general obligation bond this November.  Our committee 

is made up of business leaders, board directors, parents, teachers and community members 

who believe the best investment for our future economy is our students. 

 

This short-term, five-year bond will bring necessities to our schools that have been  

underfunded since our nation’s recession began in 2008.  Our school district has cut $70  

million from their budget in the last five years.  Our students are feeling the impact of those 

cuts. 

 

This bond would help the school district in three key areas: 

1. INSTRUCTIONAL TECHNOLOGY:  Provide technology our kids need to not only keep up, 

but to get ahead in their education.  Students require the educational tools of the 21st 

century to compete in the modern workforce, and we have fallen behind. 

2. SAFETY:  Invest in electronic security improvements and other more advanced safety 

measures. 

3. FACILITIES:  Protect students as well as our largest capital investments by making     

necessary earthquake and seismic upgrades. 

 

It will take many supporters to realize this goal for our students.  You can support Citizens for 

Hillsboro Schools by: 

 Making a donation to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools.  (Do you know Oregon allows you 

to make a donation to any PAC each year and get it back as a tax credit?  You’re 

allowed $50 as an individual or $100 filing jointly.) 

 Sharing your support of the bond with an endorsement 

 Volunteering your time 

 

Now is the time to invest in the instructional technology that will prepare students for the jobs 

of today and tomorrow while ensuring their safety.  Together, we will build a stronger  

community for everyone. 

 

Thank you!  

 

Kim Strelchun  Monte Akers 

Campaign Chair  Treasurer 
kim@yesforhillsboroschools.org monte@yesforhillsboroschools.org 

 

 

 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 11 of 212



Citizens for Hillsboro Schools 
PO Box 2702 Hillsboro OR 97123 
www.yesforhillsboroschools.org 

BACKGROUND 

Since the economic recession began in 2008, the Hillsboro School District has cut $70 million 

from their budget.  The School Board believes the time has come to move forward with some 

targeted and strategic investments for our students. 

 
FUNDING PRIORITIES 

1. TECHNOLOGY:  Technology needs in our district can no longer be ignored.  The         

replacement cycle has all but been abandoned as result of six straight years of 

budget reductions; as a result, our computer inventory has aged past its useful life at a 

time when our needs are vastly increasing.  With the conversion to a new student 

management system and online grade book, increased assessment expectations for 

students, and the need to more fully integrate technology into the classroom for       

enhanced learning opportunities, the time is now to implement a technology             

investment strategy. 

2. FACILITIES:  High-needs facility maintenance items top $60 million in the district.         

Approximately $15 million of those have been prioritized as the highest need items.  

The Board has indicated an interest in using Construction Excise Tax (CET) collections 

toward some of these needs.  A reasonable estimate might be that $1.5 to $2 million 

per year could be used out of CET funds for facility maintenance.  If $4 million from the 

bond were also put those projects, we could come close to completing all of our  

highest priority projects over the next five years. 

3. SAFETY:  The district was able to jump start its investment in safety enhancements 

through the Safe Schools, Healthy Students grant it received in 2005.  Since the grant 

ended, however, there have not been funds available to make all the safety             

improvements we need, such as line of sight corrections, interior locking doors, key 

card access, security cameras at all buildings, etc.  This bond would allow us to take 

the safety of our buildings to the next needed level. 

 
AMOUNT OF BOND SALE 

The board passed a resolution to put a $25 million General Obligation Bond on the November 

5, 2013 ballot.  The repayment schedule would be approximately $.42 per $1,000 assessed 

property value each year.  For the median home with a value of $200,000 the bond would 

equate to $7 per month. 

 
BOND FACTS 

 Funds from a general obligation bond are guaranteed which allow for planning, unlike 

a local option levy. 

 Funds are restricted and can only be used for infrastructure and items with a life of at 

least one year.  They cannot be used for personnel. 

 A Bond Oversight Committee will be convened to oversee the use of the funds and 

report back to the Board. 

 A Value on Investment (VOI) rubric will be created for the technology investment to 

help us tie our expenditures in that area to positive student achievement outcomes. 

 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 12 of 212



HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND RECOMMENDATION 

FUNDING AREA FUNDING SOURCE PROJECT LIST/CATEGORIES TOTAL ESTIMATED 

EXPENDITURES 

TECHNOLOGY 

Year 0 

2013-2014 

Discretionary Reserves  

Approved by Board & 

Budget Committee May 

2013 

Projection Units 

Projector Receivers 

Staff Laptops - 300 

Staff/Student Desktops - 500 

Instructional Tech Coach 

Mobile Device Management 

Professional Development 

Broadband Infrastructure 

Wireless Access Point Density 

$1.5 Million 

TECHNOLOGY 

Years 1-6 

2014-2019 

General Obligation 

Bond 

Projection Units 

Projector Receivers 

Staff Laptops - 1500 

Staff/Student Desktops - 5000 

Student Devices 

Instructional Materials 

Mobile Device Management 

Wireless Access Point Density 

$17 Million 

TECHNOLOGY 

Years 1-6 

2014-2019 

General Fund Instructional Tech Coaches 

Professional Development 

Broadband Infrastructure 

Firewall Upgrade 

$2 Million 

($400,000 per year) 

FACILITIES 

Year 0 

2013-2014 

Construction Excise Tax 

(CET) 

Highest priority facility  

maintenance projects 

(roof replacements, seismic up-

grades, sprinkler 

 installations, etc.) 

$1.5 Million 

FACILITIES 

Years 1-6 

General Obligation 

Bond 

Highest priority facility  

maintenance projects 

Up to $4 Million 

FACILITIES 

Years 1-6 

Construction Excise 

Tax (CET) 

Highest priority facility  

maintenance projects 

$7.5-$10 Million 

SAFETY 

Years 1-6 

 

General Obligation 

Bond 

Line of sight corrections 

Key card access at schools 

Interior locking doors 

Security cameras 

Panic buttons/automatic lock-

ing doors/alarmed doors 

Radio repeaters in buildings 

Strobe communications 

Fencing 

$4 Million 

General Obligation Bond Total $25 Million 

General Fund Total $2 Million 

Discretionary Reserves Total $1.5 Million 

Construction Excise Tax Total $9-$11.5 Million 

**DRAFT** 

Construction Excise Tax (CET), passed in 2007,  

is assessed by the City of Hillsboro, Washing-

ton County, and the City of Cornelius. The tax 

is $1/square foot on residential construction 

and remodeling and $0.50/square foot on 

non-residential construction and remodeling, 

with a cap of $25,000. Funds are intended to 

be used for facility-related costs. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 13 of 212



Yes, I want to help Hillsboro Students  

& Citizens for Hillsboro Schools! 

 
  I will endorse the bond campaign 

  I will donate $________ to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools 

  I will volunteer at a phone bank  

  I will volunteer at a canvass event 

  Yes, please acknowledge my donation on your website. 

 

Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Occupation (for tax purposes): ____________________________________________________ 
 

Please mail this completed form to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools, PO Box 2702, Hillsboro OR 97123.   

Checks should be made payable to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools.  Thank you for your support! 

Yes, I want to help Hillsboro Students  

& Citizens for Hillsboro Schools! 

 
  I will endorse the bond campaign 

  I will donate $________ to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools 

  I will volunteer at a phone bank  

  I will volunteer at a canvass event 

  Yes, please acknowledge my donation on your website. 

 

Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Occupation (for tax purposes): ____________________________________________________ 
 

Please mail this completed form to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools, PO Box 2702, Hillsboro OR 97123.   

Checks should be made payable to Citizens for Hillsboro Schools.  Thank you for your support! 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 14 of 212



RESOLUTION NO. 2444 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HILLSBORO COUNCIL SUPPORTING PASSAGE OF 
HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRlCT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND. 

WHEREAS, the Hillsboro School District has proposed a five-year General Obligation 
Bond to be voted on November 5, 2013; 

WHEREAS, due to repeated state school funding shortfalls over the past five years, 
Hillsboro School District has cut $70 million from the budgets, eliminating 22 school days and 
258 full-time staff positions; 

WHEREAS, Hillsboro School District has reduced administration, maintenance, 
textbooks and learning materials, technology and safety investments; 

WHEREAS, the proposed School District general obligation bond is designed to generate 
$25 million to address, in part, the loss of funding received by the Hillsboro School District from 
the Oregon State School Fund; 

WHEREAS, the monies from the bond will replace outdated computers, make substantial 
improvements to student access to instructional technology necessary for the 21 51 century 
workplace, and make necessary safety and maintenance improvements at the highest-priority 
schools, thereby promoting the Hillsboro School District's mission of graduating students 
prepared for college and careers; 

WHEREAS, the bond costs $0.42 per $1,000 of assess property value. Homes with the 
median assessed value of $200,000 would pay an estimated additional $7 per month. 

WHEREAS, the members of the Hillsboro City Council believe that a strong school 
system is essential for the health of the Hillsboro community and area businesses, and creates a 
foundation that makes Hillsboro a great place to live, work and play. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HILLSBORO RESOL YES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I. The Hillsboro City Council offers its unqualified support for voter 
approval of the Hillsboro School District's General Obligation Bond and urges voters to vote 
"yes" on November 5, 2013. 

Section 2. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 

Approved and adopted by the Hillsboro City Council at a regular meeting held on the 20'h 
day of August 2013. 

ATTEST: 

Page 1 of 1 __________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 15 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 16 of 212



 

Agenda Item No: 8A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   September 12, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of City ownership of community events. 

Request:  Council discuss assuming ownership of more community events. 
 
Background:  Over the past year there has been a great deal of discussion surrounding 
who owns community events like the North Plains garlic festival or the Jingle.  Overtime 
these activities have become a part of the culture of this community, and to ensure 
continuity it has been suggested that the City assume ownership of some of these 
activities, and then in turn work with other community groups to cosponsor or operate the 
events. 
 
As Council is aware the City was at risk of losing the garlic festival about two years ago 
when the Chamber of Commerce decided it was not a profitable enterprise.  Council was 
quick to take up the cause of preserving the event, and directed resources to perpetuate 
the tradition. By assuming ownership the City could avoid such a lapse in leadership for 
traditional events. 
 
The North Plains Events Association (NPEA) was formed last year for the express 
purpose of continuing traditions like the garlic festival, Jingle and city-wide garage sale 
which were presented by the Chamber of Commerce in the past.  NPEA’s Board would 
like to transfer an ownership role to the City for these events, and it would be willing to 
negotiate roles for the future. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Accepting ownership of events does not necessarily have an immediate and direct fiscal 
impact.  By assuming oversight of these events the City will be accepting some risk for 
liabilities incurred at a public event and loss of funds if the City fronts money for an 
activity that does not return adequate revenue (for example the garlic festival has lost 
money in some years).  Certain expenses will also have to pass through the City budget 
if the City decides to contract with individuals and organizations, or procure additional 
equipment.  Other details like financial relationships and reporting would need to be 
worked out after staff has the direction in which Council wishes to see it proceed. 
 
Recommendation: Council discuss its position regarding the ownership of community 
events. __________________________ 

City Council Packet 
Monday, September 16, 2013 

Page 17 of 212



 

Agenda Item No: 8B     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   September 12, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of skateboarding equipment 

Request:  Council discuss disposition of skateboard equipment. 
 
Background:  In August 2009 a temporary skate park was installed in the north 
basketball court at Jessie Mays Community Park.  The equipment was purchased by the 
Friends of the North Plains Skateboard Park (Friends).   
 
On May 3, 2010 the City Council made a decision to remove skateboarding equipment.  
At the time Council heard complaints from two adjoining neighbors, and staff cited 
concerns expressed by CIS about the how the equipment was installed on a temporary 
basis and the use of steel components which are prone to absorbing heat.  The Council 
decision was to remove the equipment in advance of the Garlic Festival.  There was a 
brief discussion of the skate park in the following months, as the Police Chief appeared 
to have taken a complaint related to an injury and Mr. Broome offered comments.  No 
additional Council discussion about skate parks can be found in 2010 or early 2011.  
  
When the equipment was first removed it was stored at a private property by the 
Friends.  In 2012, the City was asked to store the equipment, as the private property 
owner could no longer accommodate it.  The equipment has been stored at the City’s 
water tank site since that time. 
 
Staff has made several attempts to broker the transfer of the equipment to another 
organization with no success.  I recently instructed Public Works Director Blake Boyles 
to explore how we can dispose of the equipment so that it can be used for its intended 
purpose.  We reviewed some of the steps that needed to be taken including declaring 
the equipment surplus if it belonged to the City and contacting the fundraisers from the 
Friends of the North Plains Skateboard Park, which included Councilor Warren.  While 
initial contacts were made the communications loop was not closed and Councilor 
Warren was advised after the fact that Evergreen Christian Church in Hillsboro 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 18 of 212



expressed an interest in accepting the equipment and quickly acted to transport the 
equipment to their location.   
 
Councilor Warren expressed his concern to me regarding the disposition of the 
equipment and asked that the transfer not be made until he had time to consult with 
other community groups that helped donate funds for the equipment.  Evergreen still 
has the equipment and understands it should not be set up and its return may be 
required. 
 
Staff is requesting Council to address a couple of specific issues: 
 

1) Who owns the equipment? 
 
2) Should the equipment continue to be stored at City facilities? 

 
The Friends of the North Plains Skateboard Park purchased the equipment with funds 
they raised from local residents and businesses.  It is my understanding the nonprofit 
organization has disbanded, but it is not clear what the process was for winding down, 
which would include disposition of its assets.  In other words, technically a non-existent 
group cannot own property.  If available, the bylaws of the organization would likely 
provide guidance regarding who is the beneficiary of the groups assets upon 
disincorporation. 
 
There is no clear indication that the City formally accepted ownership of the equipment.   
Nothing in the minutes of Council meetings from 2008 forward indicate an action by 
Council to accept ownership of the property.  That said, it appears the City did not 
always document the acceptance of property in the past, for example the acceptance of 
police vehicles.  Until such time that the City has established ownership of the property 
it is premature to dispose of it.  The City would also need to abide by its surplus 
property rules. 
 
The equipment was stored on private property for a few years, and then transferred to a 
City location last year.  It does not require a great deal of space.  The City has no formal 
arrangement for the storage of the equipment.  The City can set a timeline for storage or 
removal of the equipment. 
 
In discussing the matter with Councilor Warren there appears to be a continued desire 
to obtain some use of the equipment within the North Plains community.  While the 
City’s insurer has advised against the use of the equipment as a temporary installation, 
it has not prohibited its use.  Similar equipment is in use in the City of Rainier, Oregon 
which is insured by CIS. 
 
What are the Risks Associated with Skateboarding Equipment? 
Skateboarding is physical activity, and participants will be injured from time to time.  
According to the Consumer Product Safety Commission, by statistical comparison 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 19 of 212



skateboarding is safer than many traditional sports.  For example skateboarders have a 
0.8% change of receiving an injury each time they skate, while soccer players have 
2.4% chance of being injured each time they play.  Basketball players are three times 
more likely than skateboards to suffer injuries requiring medical treatment.   
 
The risk of skateboarding is one that can be managed in the same way as other 
facilities for physical activities like tennis courts, basketball courts and playgrounds.  
From a risk management point of view a playground or sports court is not more or less 
risky than a skateboard park.  It is the quality of the equipment and maintenance 
program that affects the risk most greatly.  
 
The skateboard park equipment purchased is of a good quality and would be durable for 
several years of use outdoors if properly installed.  It is possible to reinstall the 
equipment at another location. The problems noted in the CIS letter are that metal 
absorbs and retains heat easily, and it more likely to cause some burns; and concrete 
equipment does not share that risk factor.  Additionally, the hardware used to assemble 
the steel obstacles can be damaged and loosened which can create an unsafe 
condition.  As with any other play equipment like a slide or swing it must be regularly 
inspected and taken out of service or promptly repaired when needed.  Concrete 
skateboard obstacles are easier to maintain in the long run, and are a permanent 
installation, however regular inspection is still needed to ensure no fracturing or 
damage. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
It is unclear if the City owns the equipment.  If it does it could sell it for revenue.  If the 
property belongs to the Friends, it is unclear if any revenue can be received or 
distributed.  The City is not charging anything for the storage of equipment.  There is no 
pressing need to remove it from City property.   
 
It is always desirable to place equipment in its highest and best use.  Evergreen 
Christian Church would accept a donation of the equipment.  It is unclear if they would 
offer a donation of time, equipment or cash in exchange. 
 
(Funding has been allocated for a skate park for the past 3 years.  In 2012, City staff 
worked with the Parks Advisory Board (PAB) to identify options for a skate park.  The 
PAB shelved the notion of recommending a skate park to Council until other park 
priorities were addressed.  Staff subsequently stopped work on a skate park or trail.) 
 
Recommendation: Council provide direction regarding the disposition of the 
equipment. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 20 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 21 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 22 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 23 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 24 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 25 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 26 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 27 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 28 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 29 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 30 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 31 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 32 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 33 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 34 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 35 of 212



 

Agenda Item No.: 8C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   September 12, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Draft Policies 

Request:  Council accept the draft of the policies for review. 
 
Background:  The City currently relies on three documents to explain policy to 
employees: the Employee Handbook, the Policy and Procedures Manual, and the Safety 
Manual (all of these are available on the city’s website at 
http://www.northplains.org/index.php/city-documents/employment).  Unfortunately not all 
policies are well explained in any of the manuals, and in some cases there are circular 
references.   
 
Staff is proposing to have a more streamlined Employee Handbook which only highlights 
the common employment policies, a policy manual that provides a comprehensive 
explanation of the policies and the safety manual which addresses specific activity risks.  
 
The new policy manual will be sorted into general policy areas such as: 

 Council 
 Recruitment and Selection 
 Payroll Administration 
 Public Works  
 Finance  
 Employment 
 Risk Management 

 
These drafts represent the first efforts to combine the policy statements from both the 
Employee Handbook and Policy and Procedures.  Staff will soon assemble council policies 
which are not reflected in ordinance, such as street and park naming conventions. 
 
Once completed these policies will be posted on the City’s website.  
 
The new draft Employee Handbook will be submitted to Council next month. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Review and adoption of the policies has no direct fiscal impact.  
 
Recommendation: Council accept the draft document and discuss the policies on 
October 21. 

http://www.northplains.org/index.php/city-documents/employment


__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 37 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 38 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 39 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 40 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 41 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 42 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 43 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 44 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 45 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 46 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 47 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 48 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 49 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 50 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 51 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 52 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 53 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 54 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 55 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 56 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 57 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 58 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 59 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 60 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 61 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 62 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 63 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 64 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 65 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 66 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 67 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 68 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 69 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 70 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 71 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 72 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 73 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 74 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 75 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 76 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 77 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 78 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 79 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 80 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 81 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 82 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 83 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 84 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 85 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 86 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 87 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 88 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 89 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 90 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 91 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 92 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 93 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 94 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 95 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 96 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 97 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 98 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 99 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 100 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 101 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 102 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 103 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 104 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 105 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 106 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 107 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 108 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 109 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 110 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 111 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 112 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 113 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 114 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 115 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 116 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 117 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 118 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 119 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 120 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 121 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 122 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 123 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 124 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 125 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 126 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 127 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 128 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 129 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 130 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 131 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 132 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 133 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 134 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 135 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 136 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 137 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 138 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 139 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 140 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 141 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 142 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 143 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 144 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 145 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 146 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 147 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 148 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 149 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 150 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 151 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 152 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 153 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 154 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 155 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 156 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 157 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 158 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 159 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 160 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 161 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 162 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 163 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 164 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 165 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 166 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 167 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 168 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 169 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 170 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 171 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 172 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 173 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 174 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 175 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 176 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 177 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 178 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 179 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 180 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 181 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 182 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 183 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 184 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 185 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 186 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 187 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 188 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 189 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 190 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 191 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 192 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 193 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 194 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 195 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 196 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 197 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 198 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 199 of 212

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 8D

mreh
Typewritten Text
  Auto Pay Check Register



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 200 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 201 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 202 of 212

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 8D

mreh
Typewritten Text
Manual Check Register



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 203 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 204 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 205 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 206 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 207 of 212



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 208 of 212



 

Agenda Item No: 9A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   September 12, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  Jennifer Knowles, Management Analyst 
Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Discussion of Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade on October 26, 2013 

Request:  Council discuss the upcoming event. 
 
Background:  The schedule for the event is as follows: 
 

Event Time 

Breakfast at Senior Center 7-10 am 

Pumpkin Fun Run 9 am (9:15 for run/walk) 

Costume Parade  11:30 am 

Pumpkin Carving Contest  12:30 pm - 2 pm 

Coloring Contest  12 pm - 2 pm 

Harvest Flavors Baking Contest  1:00 pm - 2 pm 

Mini-pumpkin Launch  2:00 pm - 3 pm 

Pumpkin Cookie Decorating  12 pm - 3 pm 

Face Painting  12 pm - 3 pm 

Harvest Foods 12 pm - 3 pm 

Lunch (NPEA)  12 pm  - 3 pm 

Cider Smash  12 pm - 3 pm 

First Responders and Emergency 
Vehicles  

12 pm - 3pm 

 
Resources: 
Staff work is performed predominantly to Jennifer Knowles, a part-time employee. 
 
Some additional staff assistance may be needed for banner hanging, race equipment 
deployment/collection, Jessie Mays set-up and cleaning, and police department personnel 
participation in safety display. 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 209 of 212



Below is an estimate for supplies:  
 

Expense Amount 

Pumpkin carving kits $20 

Crayons $0 

Spray paint and popsicle sticks (awards and race ranking) $20 

Bulk candy $20 

Face paint $20 

Cider press and accoutrements $40 

Advertising including reusable banners $100   

Race director (contracted) $150 

ORRC race supplies rental (includes cones, software etc.) 
 - Refundable deposit ($350) 

$50 
 

T-shirts: $450 

Total $870 

 
Revenues: 

Source Estimated Amount 

Run registrations (40 runners) $800 

Donations $400 

Total $1200 

 
In kind donations:   

 Recology: pumpkins 

 Pumpkin Ridge Golf Course: sugar cookies 

 Debrys: apples 

 Photography: Mitch Ward 

 Matt Peal: vintage truck participation 

 Mark Susbauer: vintage tractor participation (tentative) 
 
Possible partners for the day: 

 Tuality Hospital 
o Requested: educational booth on healthy living and habits 
o Requested: monetary sponsor 
o Requested: other – volunteer support 

 Costco 
o Requested: cash card 

 Fred Meyer 
o Requested: post-race food items for runners/walkers 
o Requested: gift cards totaling $100 
o Requested: running/sport-associated items for run/walk entrant raffle prizes  

 North Plains Christian Church 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 210 of 212



o Monetary and/or volunteer support 
 
Other partners queried/possibly to be queried 

 Betty Lou’s Inc. 

 Summit Foods 

 Geraldi's 

 Market Express 

 McDonald’s 

 Subway 

 King Torta 

 Treasure Chest 

 A&T Resale 

 The Rogue Brew Pub and Eatery 

 The Corner Market 

 Last Watering Hole 

 J&S Golf Carts 

 North Plains Veterinary Clinic 

 Jamba Juice 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 211 of 212



October 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

Library Board   
Special joint meeting with the 
Banks Library Board held in 
North Plains 

10/2 

City Council Tuesday 7:00 p.m. 10/7 

Planning Commission Demagalski  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 10/9 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 10/10 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 10/14 

Chili Cook-Off   Jessie Mays Community Hall 
at 6:30 10/17 

Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown   Jessie Mays Community Hall 
from 7:00-11:00 p.m. 10/19 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 10/21 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 10/23 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 10/23 

Pumpkin Run and Costume 
Parade  7:00 a.m. -3:00 p.m. Senior 

Center and Jessie Mays 10/26 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Page 212 of 212


	4A 091613 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 090313 Minutes
	6B Bond Donation Form
	6B Bond FirstLetter
	6B BondInfo 2013 Background
	6B Nina Carlson Hillsboro schools bond measure campaign is off and running
	6B Resolution Cornelius
	6B Resolution Hillsboro
	8A Memo Ownership of the Garlic Festival
	8B Memo Ownership of the Skate Park Equipment
	8B Pages from 08-August 3, 2009 RS - Approved
	8B Pages from 09-September 8, 2009 RS - Signed
	8B Pages from 09-September 21, 2009 - Approved
	8B Pages from 04-April 5, 2010 RS
	8B Pages from 04-April 19, 2010 RS
	8B Pages from 05-May 3, 2010 RS - Approved-2
	8B Pages from 06-June 7, 2010 - Approved
	8B Pages from 07-July 19, 2010 RS - Approved
	8B Pages from 07-July 19, 2010 RS - Approved-2
	8C Memo Draft copies of policies
	8Ca City Policies Draft
	8D August Check Register Auto Pay
	8D August Check Register Manual Checks
	12B October 2013 Council Calendar



